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 Editorial:

LOCALS VS NON-LOCALS

In the criminal revision petition filed by the state, J&K High Court has issued notice to the Rashtriya Rifles (RR) to explain their position for harassing the police officials at Magam police station on 11 September 2000. (34RR camped at Beeru, Budgam after the militant attack, had stormed inside police station and overpowered the police personnel subjecting them along with criminals to identification parade including Stationed House officer (SHO).

The action compelled the police to file a FIR against them and to produce the challan before judicial magistrate Magam after 4 years in 2004 .The court refused to take cognizance of the matter without obtaining sanction under Section VI of Armed Forces Special Powers Act (AFSPA). So the police have moved to High Court. It is an isolated case where police pushed to wall have dared to register an FIR of the incident, otherwise since out break of the armed conflict it is routine that the police has been humiliated by the security forces. The state police in early 90’s were first to be targeted by militants and security forces. In 1993 after the custodial killing of a policeman, which proved, the last straw at back of the camel, police rebelled and restored to mutiny, which was crushed by the armed forces. The then Governor dismissed 109 police personnel, all of them locals. The ringleaders were detained, humiliated, punished and booked under the  Public Safety Act (PSA). After mutiny, the police realized that it is the armed forces that are calling shots and are the real actors as far the security and law and order are concerned.  During conflict the police organizations have been controlled by mostly the non local police officials who have relied more on the security forces and have supported their actions whenever police personnel faced their highhandedness. In case of Khursheed Khan an SHO who had the audacity to confront the army contention in the Haigam in 2003, blaming army for the unprovoked firing over the peaceful demonstrators had to face wrath from higher officials for it. Virtually he had to go underground for speaking truth that had annoyed and embarrassed the superior officials. It is done in the state where the law and order is the state subject with in the domain of the state police.  Legally speaking, armed forces have been requisitioned by the state from federal government to restore the law and order and they have to sub-ordinate the local police.

According to the rough estimate 70 thousand police personnel are being aided by 7 00,000 security forces to restore the law and order. The ratio is 1:10. Only security forces have impunity under AFSPA and not the police. Under these circumstances how can a local already suspected being native can seek assistance from outsiders that too when the outsiders suspect that local state functionaries are tacit supporters and sympathizers of the secessionist movement. Why only police even bureaucracy, judges, politicians who try to assert their powers have been humiliated and forced to submit. Politicians for the reason that they totally survive on the security cover granted to them. They cannot dare to take any confrontation against their ‘protectors’ on their highhandedness otherwise they have been told explicitly of           “ breaking their legs” by the Armed forces. Local bureaucracy particularly the lower rank who dare to object the harassment like a tehsildar in Uri way back in 1992 who pulled out his revolver on being harassed by a junior official. He was transferred promptly, so was the case with a judge who took cognizance in Chittisinghpora killing in April 3, 2000 ordering investigation into the killings. The point is not that police verses army or politicians verses army. It is simple locals verses non-locals. Even in security zones at the peak of militancy, the situation was like that of British cantonments. There were segregation between the local bureaucracy and outsiders. The army and security forces are conscious about the fact that they are operating in the territory where people are hostile and they consider them as occupiers. Under this situation as saying goes “ when the soldier is slapped by the men he cannot find the men who slapped him, he slaps any one who looks like him”.

 Even the state bureaucracy is hostile, and disapproves the conduct of outsiders (with the exception of collaborators) who after demitting office become part and parcel of the local aspirations. That is the point, which Kashmiris are questioning. Who controls administration in Kashmir not to speak about the bigger issues like sovereignty? Who controls politicians, bureaucracy? It lends credit to the arguments that have gun will rule. That is the ground reality and not the sections of the J&K constitution and articles of the Indian Constitutions. Magam case is one such incident but it is unlikely to expect that under the given circumstances the security forces will assist the local police. The reality is visa versa. The local administration is used as doormats.  As we have seen it in crackdowns, parade and search operations, the lamb faced police person watching helplessly the army torturing and killing non-combatants under their noses. They are acting like ambulance chasers. More and more statement are made that the law and order problem is being tackled by the state police effectively and even the presidential medals have been awarded to the high rank police officials who allow this business of harassment to continue but the truth is that it is the outsiders whether in police, bureaucracy, intelligence or security forces who control everything.  

FATHER OF SIX MINORS DISAPPEARS 

On July 2-2005, forty-year-old Mana Tancha, a shepherd was subjected to enforced disappearances by the troops of 28 Rashtriya Rifles (RR). 

The family of the disappeared made possible efforts to get him free from the army custody but to no avail. Poverty and ignorance added to problems of victim’s family and the remoteness of the area deteriorated the hopes.

Mana Tancha's wife Begum, 40, visited the office of Public Commission on Human Rights (PCHR) to reveal her ordeal.

She told The Informative Missive, "on 2nd July, 2005 at around 9:00 am a small contingent of 28 RR came to our home and took away Mana Tancha on the orders of the Major. 

After hours when he failed to return, we got apprehensive and rush to the army camp of 28 RR (which is only few meters away from our dilapidated house) where we were told that he was set free. On our return when we found him nowhere our apprehensions got stronger and we repeatedly approached the army camp for days on end. Initially army used dilly dally tactics to avoid but finally one day they threatened me of dire consequences, Begum added. 

They said, if I will not stop approaching them they will do something terrible to my family. Even they (army) intimidated me of killing me and my children if I would file a court case or try to highlight it through the media. Scared and apprehensive I decided not to file any case or to highlight it through media". 

Mana Tancha has six children - three sons and three daughters; all minors and they have no one to support. The family often indulges in begging for survival. Begum is in a fix as what to do and what not to do as fear engulfs her terribly. 

Begum suspects some village people who she identified as Juma Khatana Sarpanch (village head). Karim Khatana and Gufa Khatana are involved in the disappearances of her husband. 

She further stated to the newsletter, “I am sure that these three villagers are involved in disappearing my husband and are wholly responsible for my ordeal. They have a reason to do this as these three villagers constructed a road passing outside our house, which was resisted by Mana. To get their work done they hatched a plot with the army to disappear the only impediment as they have close association with the army". 

Meanwhile, Mana's wife filed First Information Report (FIR) with the Harwan Police Station and sought help but police showed no concern. After police failure and insensitivity, exasperated Mana's wife finally pleaded the accused villagers to talk to the army in order to set Mana free or disclose his whereabouts. But they vehemently denied to facilitate his release and directed her not to talk to the army again about her husband otherwise she and her children would be in great danger. 

After 20 days of Mana's disappearance a militant was killed in the upper reaches of Harwan by the army who was buried in presence of the villagers in the local graveyard hence identified as foreigner. Listening to the news Mana’s wife got disturbed, as there are cases where disappeared people were killed in fake encounters and later dubbed as foreign militants. After identification of the dead body, Mana’s wife felt shattered. 

………..AND DISAPPEARANCE CONTINUES

September: Hundreds of people from Mochua and Chadoora area of Budgam district came out of their houses to protest against the involuntary disappearance of two youth and their illegal detention by the Indian forces on 11th and 12th September 2005. They were identified as Muhammad lshaq Wani, 23 son of Abdul Rahman Wani of Wani Mohalla, Mochua and Shamim Ahmad Itoo son of Muhammad Ramzan Itoo of Nagam, Chadoora

 
The people came out of their houses when one of the local newspapers reported that the security forces in custody have killed one of the youth. This caused panic in his native place. The people took to streets and held strong protest demonstrations. They staged a dharna on road and stopped vehicular traffic. They demanded police investigation but since the cops did not respond, the people intensified the demonstrations. 

The panic started when the G branch of BSF, Sanat Nagar picked up Muhammad lshaq Wani from his house on September 10, 2005 and subjected him to severe torture throughout his detention period till midnight. He was released at 1: 25 am on September 11, 2005 and directed to report to the camp that morning. For the whole day Ishaq was kept in the camp. In the night when he was allowed to go back some persons in civvies barged into his house and forced him to accompany them. From that very movement the search for his whereabouts started. 

Another person, Shamim Ahmed ltoo was too detained by some unidentified persons just outside his shop in Chadoora market. According to his family members, five TATA Sumo borne gunmen picked him up from the market on September 12 at about 8 pm. "At 11 pm we received a call from his cell phone and he assured me that he will be back in the morning and from that very movement I tried hundreds of times to ring him up but his phone was switched off”, his father ,Muhammad Ramzan ltoo said. Five days later, his whereabouts were ascertained. 

According to the duo’s family members they had been illegally detained at Sharifabad (Kilo force) RR camp. "I think torture is a very light word to use while describing the treatment they met at the hands of Indian security forces", said Abdul Rehman Wani, father of one of the detained youth. According to the eyewitnesses both of them bore several torture marks all over the body. Itoo's legs bore burn marks. They have treated my son like an animal, they don't know any norm of humanity', his father expressed while talking to The Informative Missive. 

Peace. dignity, healing touch! These words sound quite naive in present circumstances in this part of the world", said Itoo's father. 'Our politicians are just fighting on the mere number of cases of rights violation but nobody among them gives a thought to it, why they don't do anything to stop it, they are just strengthening the hands of Indian security forces against innocent Kashmir’s", he expressed with the pain quite evident from his unusual body movements. 

'FOREIGN MILITANTS' IDENTIfIED AS LOCALS

BODIES OF 2 LOCAL HIZB MILITANTS EXHUMED
Kupwara, Sept 17: Hamid's mother has turned blind since her son left home and took up arms seven years ago. Several days back her family saw the pictures of Hamid's body in newspapers. Her son has been killed in a four-day long gunfight with troops on the line of control on September 10. 

During a four-day long gunfight in Machil sector of Kupwara district last week, troops claimed they had killed five foreign militants. However the killed youth have turned out to be local militants of Hizbul Mujahideen (HM), four of them residents of Pulwama district and one of Anantnag in South Kashmir. The youth were killed after sneaking into this side of the LoC on September 10. 

Families of two youths, Tariq Ahmed Mir, 25, son of Abdul Gani Mir of Ganmoosa, Pulwama and Abdul Hamid Bhat, 32 Ghulam Mohiuddin Bhat of Parigam, Pulwama, have recognized their wards from the photographs published in media and have claimed their bodies form the district administration of Kupwara. 

The Deputy Commissioner's order dated September 17 reads: " on the request of parents who have identified their sons on the basis of photographs and sources and on their insistence, BMO Sogam, SHO Kupwara and Naib tehsildar are directed to accompany the relatives of slain militants for exhumation and later handing over the bodies of both." 

The families of the militants had already arrived in Kupwara and felt proud of their (militants) martyrdom. 

"They sacrificed their lives for the cause of freedom. Even though place of burial makes no difference, still we had a reason to carry the bodies to our village," the families say. 

While Hamid's family wanted his body so that his blind mother could feel it one last time, Tariq's family wanted the body exhumed for different reasons. The RR troops in Ganmoosq had allegedly made the life of the family, and the villagers in general, a hell. "They would often harass us and tell us to bring Tariq. Now they are sure he has been killed and that would at least provide the relief to our neighbors," 

On the orders of Deputy Commissioner Kupwara, the two bodies were exhumed in presence of their families. 

MILITANTS GUN DOWN 3 IN DODA

JAMMU, Sep 2: Three civilian including a peon of Education department were shot dead by the militants at Dang Doru village near Dacchan in Kishtwar tehsil of district Doda on September 2 morning while a civilian was injured in army firing at Seri Chohana area of Surankote in Poonch district.

 
Security forces claimed to have nabbed two Over Ground Workers (OGWs) of the militants from Banihal area of Doda district. Police report said that seven villagers including two women were on their way from Kishtwar to the remote Dacchan area when at Dang Doru, a group of militants fired on them from a hillock. Three villagers including a peon of Education department died on the spot while four others including two women took shelter behind big boulders and managed to escape unhurt from the spot. The incident took place at 1145 hrs  on September 2 morning. Police identified the deceased as Tara Chand (Peon), resident of Copara, Madan Lal of Pang Dhar and Sonullah Chopan of Trongi (Marwah). 

The four civilians who escaped unhurt reported the matter to Police station Dacchan. Police and Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) rushed to the spot and shifted the bodies to Dacchan Hospital mortuary. A search operation has been launched to flush out the ultras. In another incident, a civilian sustained gunshot in the firing of security forces at Seri Chohana, in Potha area of Surankote in the wee hours on September 2. The injured were identified as Mohammad Aslam, son of Raj Mohammad of Seri Chohana. Army authorities said that security forces observed four persons moving under suspicious circumstances in maize field near Seri Chohana at 0400 hours on September 2. On being challenged, they started running and took cover behind the boulders. Troops fired in which one civilian was injured. He was admitted to Sub-district hospital (SDH) Surankote. Army authorities said based on own information, two Over Ground Workers Qasim, 21 son of Laldin Gujjar of Arinder and Manjoor, 20 son of Sher Gujjar of Arinder were apprehended by security forces at Khurandar, 4 Km north west of Banihal September 2 afternoon. 

STUDENT'S MURDER EVOKES PROTEST

Srinagar, Sept 16: Hundreds of agitated protestors blocked the Srinagar-Jammu highway against the murder of a class V student by unidentified persons at Qazigund on Sept 16. Vehicular movement on the highway was suspended for hours due to the demonstration. 

According to local news agency, Azad Ali Waghay (12) son of Ali Muhammad of Satrvara Qazigund went missing on September l5 evening. The inhabitants of the area launched massive searches to trace the boy and informed people about the missing boy through public address system, but failed to locate him. The local people on September l6 morning recovered the body of the boy packed in a gunny bag, with his hands tied behind his back. The body, according to the news agency, was later handed over to police, which send it for post-mortem. A case was registered in the police station. 

The news agency said the police recovered an under process state subject certificate of Javed Ahmed Najar son of Muhammad Maqbool of Desu inside the bag. The bag had the name of Tariq Ahmed Najar written on it. 

The residents of the area staged a huge demonstration against the murder and shouted slogans against the killers. The demonstrators blocked the Srinagar-Jammu highway for hours. Police has started investigation into the incident.  

3 GOVT GUNMEN GET LIFER IN FORESTER'S MURDER; GM SHAH WAS BURNT TO DEATH FOR RANSOM

Srinagar, Sept 15: The Jammu and Kashmir High Court on Wednesday upheld the life imprisonment to three government gunmen (Ikhwanis) for torturing to death a forester in South Kashmir's Pulwama district nearly 10 years ago. 

The division bench of the court comprising Chief Justice S N Jha and Justice Mansoor Ahmed Mir upheld the judgment of District and Sessions Judge Pulwama against Abdul Ahad Rather, Zahoor Ahmed Ahanger (already dead) and Bashir Ahmed Bhat. The accused, currently on bail, have been directed to surrender in the court within a week. 

"We are of the opinion that orders of conviction and sentence have been rightly passed. Accordingly, appeal merits dismissal," the division bench ordered. 

The Sessions Judge Pulwama has been ordered to take all steps for arresting them to serve the sentence, Justice SN Jha and Justice Mir said in their judgment. 

Case history 

The three gunmen, who repol1edly worked for the Army's counter-insurgency Rashtriya Rifles troops, abducted Ghulam Muhammad Shah, a resident of Bahu Awantipora on January 28, 1996, in a tipper. 

Shah, a forester, was confined in a house of one Muhammad Akbar Lone at Jawbrar, Awantipora, where the government gunmen tortured and burnt him. He had failed to fulfill their demand of Rupees five lakh as ransom. He was however let off "half-dead" the same evening only after his family paid Rs 20,000 to the gunmen. 

Shah was removed to SMHS Hospital here in a critical condition and later to SKIMS where he succumbed to his injuries. 

The police registered an FIR against the accused trio-though unwillingly-following a strong public outcry throughout the Valley. 

Before his death, Shah told his family that the gunmen sprinkled kerosene oil on him and set him on fire. 

Eyewitness account 

Dr Muhammad Ashraf, the Block Medical Officer Pampore, one of the witnesses in the case, had deposed in his evidence that Shah was brought in Primary Health Centre with 70 percent burns. 

"Eyes were open but burnt, ears burnt, nostrils and mouth burnt, anus and urethra also burnt, 70 percent burns were found on his throat. Dr Ashraf, according to the court, had said in his remarks. 

Court ruling 

After hearing the prosecution witnesses, the session judge Pulwama on November 9, 2002, held that the accused were involved in the murder of the forester and sentenced them to life imprisonment under Section 302 RPC. 

Advocate Muhammad Ayub Bhat, counsel for the accused, had challenged the judgment arguing that there was "material contradiction in the evidence." The prosecution, according to Bhat, had failed to prove that the accused abducted the forester and burnt him. 

One of the accused, Zahoor Ahmed Ahanger of Parigam Tral, was gunned down in mysterious circumstances during the pendency of the appeal. 

The Additional Advocate General, Muhammad Amin Rathore, who represented the state argued that the prosecution has proved the case "beyond any reasonable doubt." 

The accused have failed to prove the defence," the division bench observed, adding "it's a fact that post mortem (of the forester) has not been conducted, but there is direct evidence that (the) deceased was burnt. The cause of death of the deceased was due to burn injuries." 

The division bench referred to the Supreme Court's ruling in a case Dhaanaj Singh v/s State of Punjab. It observed: "There is direct evidence available on record and the case of the prosecution cannot be thrown on the plea that the post-mortem was not conducted."
DUKHTARAN-E-MILAT CHIEF 8 OTHERS BOOKED UNDER PSA

SRINAGAR, Sep 6: A day after Prime Minister Dr Manmohan Singh assured to examine cases of all the detenues languishing in jails, police booked Dukhtaran-e-Milat (DM) Chief Syeda Asiya Andrabi along with seven activists of her organisation and a driver under the public safety act (PSA) on September 6. The DM leader and activists were arrested on September 3 when they were conducting a raid on a restaurant at Chanapora in connection with their campaign against the flesh trade. Driver of the TATA sumo, whose vehicle was used by them to reach Chanapora, was also nabbed by cops and booked under PSA. 

A number of leaders and organizations including JKLF chairman Mohammad Yasin Malik and Hurriyat Conference (Ansari faction) strongly condemned act and sought their immediate release. In this connection, Kashmir Bar Association called for a valley wide strike on Thursday. 

Addressing a press conference in Srinagar, Bar president Mian Abdul Qayoom terming the arrest and booking of women under PSA as "illegal and unwarranted, demanded immediate release of DM chief and other female activists besides the driver and revocation of the detention orders. 

Referring to their arrest, Qayoom said, "In Chanapora there is a Sheena Restaurant run by a known person who is at present member of Hurriyat Conference (A). In the restaurant two couples were found by 'the volunteers of DM in a compromising position. Three girls and a boy were found waiting outside the restaurant for their customers. When DM volunteers caught the boys and girls, they pleaded for pardon but one person, who described himself as a doctor told them that he is a very influential man and that he would teach them a lesson. Immediately thereafter police came on the spot and arrested all the volunteers". 

The Bar chairman added that the Chief judicial magistrate Budgam ordered the release of Asiya and others on bail. But police did not set them free. Later, another case was registered against them at police station Ram Munshi Bagh for allegedly destroying the wine bottles in Heemal Hotel. Again the session's court ordered their release on bail. But again the court orders were not entertained and they were finally booked under PSA for unfounded and baseless charges. The DM was peacefully running the campaign and motivating the girls to give up flesh trade. In fact, they got tremendous public support for their campaign. Instead of encouraging them, the DM leader and other activists were booked under PSA, he observed. Qayoom said the government of India had stated on September 5 that it will examine the cases of all the detenues languishing in jails but the first gift which it has given to the people of Kashmir is detention under PSA of eight women volunteers of DM and the young driver of 14 years of age. The boy is the only bread earner of his family comprising of six sisters and his mother. Barring one, all the DM volunteers booked under PSA are married and have milk-sucking babies. One of them was married only a week back but all of them are now in central jail. Asiya Andrabi also has two kids. Their father is already facing life sentence in central jail Srinagar. After the arrest and detention of Asiya, these two children have no place to stay, he stated. 

The Bar president added that the grounds of detention for Asiya given by government are that she was against the peace process, Indo-Pak dialogue and Hurriyat (A). He ridiculed the healing touch and battle of idea slogans of the state government and described those as a hoax. Qayoom said that his Bar in public interest litigation in the state high court had identified seven brothels from Sonwar to Chattabal on the Bund. In reply to the petition, the state contended before the court that they have registered seven cases in different police stations against the people involved into the flesh trade. 

During the last one year, a number of brothels have again come up in Kashmir and wine shops have also been opened all over the Valley. Only in Srinagar nine fresh wine licenses were issued/given to different people for running wine business. In Pahalgam and Gulmarg six more wine shops were opened, the Bar president said. 

The government is instrumental in opening these wine shops, and it has virtually given a free hand to these brother owners to run the flesh trade, he observed. 

Meanwhile, a spokesperson of DM said the arrest and the subsequent booking under PSA of their leader and other colleagues cannot affect their morale. "We will carry forward our programme", she said. 

YOUTH'S DISAPPEARANCE

SHO, BSF COMMANDANT ASKED TO APPEAR IN COURT
SRINAGAR, Sep 6: The High Court has ordered SHO Rajbagh and the commandant of 43 BN Border Security Force (BSF) to present themselves in the court on September 14 in case of custodial disappearance of a youth. 

Reports said that on 10-04-2005 a party of BSF personnel belonging to 43 BN arrested some youth playing cricket on the Kursoo-Rajbagh bund. The arrested persons were shifted to Dalgate and detained there. The detainees were identified Fayaz Ahmad Najar son of Mohammad Yousuf Najar and Mohammad Asif, son of Mohammad Sidiq both residents of Kursoo- Rajbagh. 

Perturbed over arrests, the locals of the area filed a report in police station Rajbagh. The people seeking the immediate release of the arrested persons also carried out protest demonstrations. It was after some days that the BSF personnel released Mohammad Asif, however they did not own the arrest of Fayaz Ahmad. 

Following this, Mohammad Yousuf approached the court and filed an application 491-06/05 in which he had made Minister of state for Home, Director General of Police; SHO Rajbagh and Commandant of 43 BN, BSF as parties to the case. The police as well as BSF filed an affidavit in the court stating that they have not arrested Fayaz Ahmad. The DIG of Police made it clear in the affidavit that they had not arrested the youth. 

Appearing for Fayaz Ahmad, senior advocate and president of High Court Bar Association, Mian Abdul Qayoom in a written statement said that the 43 BN of BSF has arrested the youth. However, challenging his statement the BSF gave written statement that Fayaz Ahmad was involved in many militancy related incidents and had been arrested by BSF on 18-9-2003. The BSF had stated that some arms and ammunition were also recovered from him and that he was later handed over to police. In its version the police in its written statement had said that Mohammad Younis Najar, brother of Fayaz Ahmad is a militant and is currently serving detention at Kote Bhalwal jail in Jammu. 

Taking a strong note of the contradictory statements of police and BSF, Justice Mansoor Ahmad Mir asked the SHO Rajbagh and the commandant of 43 BN, BSF to present them in court on September 14.
FAMILY WANTS SON, NOT COMPENSATION 

FAKE ENCOUNTER ENDS LIFE OF 4, TRUST OF THOUSANDS IN JAMMU

Sept 5: "If this is the real face of Indian Army, then the ongoing struggle in Kashmir Valley is justified," said Madan Lal, father of Bhushan Lal, a porter who was allegedly killed by the Army in Lolab, Kupwara. Fiddling with the daughter of his missing son, Madan, a retired Non Commissioned Officer (NCO) from the Army's Punjab regiment, finds it difficult to stop tears, rolling down his cheeks. "It was early morning of Bhiasakhi (Spring Festival) last year, when my son left house to work with Army as porter and was supposed to carry ration for Army," said Madan, adding that four persons from different villages were accompanying him for the same job. Army, according to his father, was offering five thousand rupees for the job. An enticing amount for an unemployed youth, that too from a very poor family. "He had promised to call after reaching the destination, but till now we are waiting for his telephonic call. 

Four civilian porters namely Satpal and Ram Lal from village Chatha, Bhushan Lal from village Mangu Chack and Ashok Kumar from Pathankote, were allegedly killed in a fake encounter in April last year in the border district of Kupwara, Kashmir. This was revealed in a letter received by the family from 'unknown' security personnel claiming to be part of 18 Rashtriya Rifles. The letter, according to the family, has been sent from Delhi. The Army is investigating the source of the letter. Showing the copy of the letter received by the family on the eve of Rakshabandhan (Hindu religious festival), Madan Lal said that the family has received letter after 18 months. "Yeh khat to uski moot ka paygam laya hai hamare liya (this letter has brought the news of his death)," he said. 

In the letter, it has been mentioned that the four civilians were taken as porters to Lolab and how 18 RR personnel later allegedly killed them. "The letter clearly specified that they were brutally killed by the army and also gives the names of the hills, as Mashkool-I and Mashkool-II, where they were dumped," he said. The letter further claimed that they were declared as militants by the army.  

"The letter gives that names of the officers responsible for the fake encounter," said Sudesh Kumari, wife of Bhusan. The family has met the Divisional Commissioner (DC), Jammu and other High officials of the state government. "DC has taken all responsibility for holding proper investigations and after solid proofs booking the guilty under law," said Madan adding that they have assured that the family would be provided justice. 

MILITANTS' RELATIVES TAKEN HOSTAGE ON TRAVEL DAYS SRINAGAR

 Sept 5: Troops of 29 Rashtriya Rifles RR stationed at Wusan have come up with a new trend. On the day when the bus runs from Srinagar to Muzaffarabad, they detain one of the members from such family for the day without sparing female members.
In the area the number of families whose at least one of the members is associated with militant outfit is 17. "From the day bus service started, troops drop chits in each of the houses a day before the bus runs and asks them to remain present in the camp from morning to evening for the day," said a militant's father. "The personnel dropping chits direct us to send anyone from the family including female members", he expressed. Many members of other families like him have served one-day detention in the camp from the morning till the bus crosses over to other side of Kashmir. 

This is not the case only with Wusan villagers but families residing in Palhalahan, Chanderhama, Goshebugh, Andergam, Sheerbugh, Aglar and Sultanpora areas also share same grievance. According to them the Major of the nearby camp personally ensures that everybody having any link, whatsoever, with the active militants remain present on the day. It is on his behest that the chits are being dropped and the members of such families are being arrested. "They are using us as shields so that the militants wont make any attempt to attack the bus", said a brother of one of the active militant. Such security measures ends just when the bus crosses the LoC and the detained persons are released. 

The Trans LoC bus service is not the only pretext for their detention. From militant incidents or visit of any Minister troops detain people for daylong.  During a recent visit by Chief minister Mufti Muhammad Sayeed to inaugurate a health center, the family members of all the active militants were detained and brothers and brother-in-law of an active militant Zahoor Ahmad Ganaie were severely tortured, this was revealed by the villagers while talking to The Informative Missive. 

Such acts of detention have been confirmed by the defense PRO, Lt Col V K Batra, while talking to one of the local English dailies. .'Whenever army has specific inputs that militants which are active in the area are going to do some action against the bus, in that case we call family members of the active militants to the camp as a preventive measure to avoid any attack", he said. 

NATIONAL TOUR OPERATORS SAY FORCES HARASS TOURISTS

Srinagar, Sept 13: "Peace returns to valley", the soaring slogan of the present coalition government to attract the record number of tourists may not work; courtesy unprecedented presence of government's own men' in uniform' in and around the world famous Dal lake. The annihilation of the lobbying process by the Mufti government is inevitable if the presence of the troops remained unchanged. This was evident due to the concern expressed by the India's major tour operators over the same that too first time in last 15 years. 

Tour Operators Association of West Bengal (TOA WB) an amalgam of major travel groups organizing tours to Kashmir, has asked the government to immediately shift the troops from Dal and its adjoining areas. Even after Chief minister ‘s orders for the shifting of troops from in and around the lake, there are more than dozen hotels still occupied by troops, government gunmen and activists of political parties. 

In a letter to the” state government, K Banergee, Secretary general TOA WB expressed concern over the treatment met to the tourists at the hands of the forces at tourists hubs. While expressing that the hotels in and around the world famous lake are under occupation, he stated, "this is an extreme discrimination on part of the government. The tourists would have extreme pleasure in visiting this Heaven on earth but their presence spoils everything and compels them to think about other tourist destinations". "The large presence of troops", Banergee added, "has resulted in great difficulty for the free movement of the incoming tourists in general and particularly causing harassment to female tourists". 

All India Tourist Society (AITS) has also expressed concern over the deployment of forces in tourist areas particularly in Dal and Boulevard. "In the name of frisking, security forces harass the tourists during the evenings. Government should take serious note of them if they want tourists to visit Kashmir. Otherwise there are other tourist friendly destinations in the country", Sarlesh Ganguly member of the AITS said. 

Travel agents association of India (TAAI), J&K chapter has also demanded shifting of forces camp in tourist areas. “ We fail to understand government policy. First they say situation in Kashmir is normal and invite the tourists. When the tourists arrive they are surprised to see large number of troops at tourist places. This way they are affecting our business”, a spokesman of TAAI said adding many travel groups of the country and foreign countries are concerned about frisking and harassment of tourists by troops. 

Much ailing tourism industry of Jammu and Kashmir and its worst victims the houseboat owners felt the same. While talking The Informative Missive, the Chairman Houseboats Owners Association, Muhammad Aziz Tuman expressed that the presence troops damage their business even further. "They don't permit tourists to roam around in the evenings on the busy Boulevard and just their presence scares them. They are there-to protect us but they are devastating us and damaging everything we have tried revive’. 

"We receive lot of verbal complaints from the tourists about the harassment by troops. We are helpless; by not shifting the troop government is not promoting tourism but fear", Tuman said. 

CRPF DEPLOYMENT ADDS TO PEOPLE'S WOES 

Srinagar, Sept 27: Replacing Border Security Force with Central Reserve Police Force has been a smooth affair for the security agencies but for the people of Srinagar city it has created further miseries and hardships. With reason being the expansion of bunkers and more frequent frisking at every nook and corner. Further barbed wires around the CRPF posts and pickets have left little space for pedestrians and public vehicles. 

Few days back, when the reporter of The Informative Missive happened to be near one of the bunkers in the middle of the historical Lal Chowk, it was quite evident that the CRPF personnel didn't even spare the beggars over there not to talk of old men walking near the post. "I live in the vicinity and am surprised to see that every time I move out of my house I have to answer their queries, they have made my life hell", said Abdul Hameed, one of the resident living just adjacent to the post. 

Such incidents are numerous, last week; a college girl injured herself when her Dupatta (scarf) got struck in the barbed wire of huge CRPF picket erected near Court Road in Srinagar. Her scarf was torn to pieces in a bid to free it. "The scene agitated the onlookers who however could do nothing except for offering new scarf to the girl," a witness expressed. 

In Karan Nagar area of the city, housing many CRPF camps, people compliant of being routinely frisked, forced to produce identity cards and restricted movement after dawn. 

“The ruling PDP president Mehbooba Mufti had assured us that as soon as the BSF will be relieved there would be no further replacement. But now more than 1200 CRPF men have been deployed in our area," said Feroz Ahmad, a businessman. " We are forced to return home as early as 7 pm. This is affecting our daily routine," he rued. 

Besides, the CRPF have erected fresh barricades in the area. "It's like walking on a razor's edge while passing through the barbed wire," said Tahir Ahmad a resident of Gole Market, Karanagar. "The fear of frisking and questioning forces us to remain indoor and even prevents us from going to mosque for evening prayers, he added. Muhammad Habib Naqash, another resident of Karan Nagar, expressing his agony, said: "My wife has a kidney ailment and she is on dialysis but the paramedic feels reluctant to visit our house because of constant harassment by the CRPF personnel.  "On one hand government claims return of peace and normalcy in the valley and at the same time its troops are indulging in atrocities on the people," Naqash added.  Several reports of harassment by CRPF personnel were received from Soura, Eidgah, Safa Kadal, Nawa Kadal, Nawab Bazaar and other parts of the old city. 

In a statement carried out by most of the local dailies, CRPF spokesman R K Singh rejected the reports of harassment as false and fabricated". "We haven't received any complaint in this regard so far," he said.

CASE FILED AGAINST BSF FOR TORTURING YOUTH 

Srinagar: Illegal detention and torture of innocent civilians at the hands of the intelligence wing of the Border Security Force, G Branch, goes on unabated. In a rare case of illegal detention and torture of a youth namely lmtiyaz Ahmad Mir son of Muhammad Ismail Mir of Lakdipora, Nowshera by G Branch BSF personnel, police has filed a case.

On the complaint of the family of the detained youth, police filed the case under FIR 150/05 and started investigations against G Branch BSF personnel. "Police has assured us that they will do their best but to what extent they can do justice with hundreds of past incidents still pending, I really don't know", skeptic over present redressal system Imtiyaz's mother said while talking to The Informative Missive. 

Imtiyaz was arrested by the G-Branch on September 21, 2005 and released in a morbid condition on September 23, 2005. During his detention, according to his father he was severely tortured unduly. Imtiyaz bears several torture marks 

including burn marks. " Under going treatment at Shere Kashmir Institute of Medical Sciences (SKIMS) Soura, doctors there are still unable to assure his complete recovery", Muhammad Ismail expressed. 

However this is not the only case. Recently, same wing of the BSF detained two persons from Mochua area of the Chadoora sub-district and tortured them in similar fashion for more than ten days.  In another incident, 21-year-old person was arrested from Rambagh area of Srinagar city in similar fashion by the G-Branch. He was detained for more than fifteen days. All of them were tortured, for the reason: nobody knows. 

Earlier according to families of the victims, police was reluctant to register cases against G-Branch. Now just filing a case against them has been appreciated to a little extent by the relatives of these persons. "I have never came to know that police has filed a case against the intelligence wing of the BSF, that is appreciable but it is just a speck and we have to work tremendously to regain our rights", said the father of one of the detained youth. 

11 YEARS ON, RESHI'S KILLERS YET TO BE PUNISHED

Srinagar, Sept 6: When Ahmadullah Reshi (son of late Haji G N Reshi, former Secretary Legislative Assembly and Member Legislative council) the then General Manager of Srinagar's Central Cooperative Bank was killed in cold blood from a point blank range allegedly by BSF guards near Fire Services headquarters, just yards away from his home on September 7th, 1994, the then Chief Secretary and Home Secretary went public to condemn it and promised a probe and severe punishment to the killers. Now eleven years over the probe findings have not seen the light of the day nor have the murderers been punished. The young son, two daughters and the wife of the slain innocent civilian, observed the day on September 7, keeping their fingers crossed as to which government or agency they should approach for justice. During the past 11 years their entire world has changed as have the then Governor, the Chief Secretary and the Home Secretary. Their sighs and sobs have gone unheard. Neither the bygone NC government nor the present dispensation, which promised the much needed 'healing touch' to such of the victims of the violence, have come forward to alleviate the sufferings of the family so far. 

There are thousands of victims like Reshi, who were done to death for no fault of theirs, whose dependents continue to long for justice! And the killings have not stopped, regardless of the promises from the Prime Minister down to the Chief Ministers. The findings of the commissions of inquiries ordered were never made public and the guilty, if at all punished, escaped with minor punishments and not the deterrent ones! Reshi family questions that why was their sole breadwinner gunned down and why the killers were not put to trial so far has remained unanswered even after eleven long years! 

ARMY WILL KILL YOU: MINISTER TELLS MLA

 Srinagar, Sept 28: A senior National Conference legislator on Wednesday revealed that a minister in the coalition government, warned him of losing his life by the Army for speaking against the forces in the Assembly. Muhammad Sayeed Akhoon stunned the House during Zero Hour when he said that Minister of State for Planning, Usman Majeed had advised him not to go against army. 

"On Tuesday, he advised me not to make statements against the Army in the House or they would kill me," Akhoon said. The NC MLA asked the Speaker to come to his rescue in a situation where a member would be shot dead for stating anything against the Army. The NC members described it "very unfortunate" and asked the Speaker to take note of it. Earlier, during his brief speech Akhoon didn't mention the name of the Minister. On being insisted by other members, who described the issue serious, to disclose name of the Minister, he said nonchalantly: "It was Usman Majeed." Majeed, a former senior leader of pro-government gunmen's outfit Awami League, was not present in the House. " The Deputy Chief minister Mangat Ram Sharma described Indian Army as "most professional and philanthropic," and said that they don't do such things. Usman Majeed later came to the House and denied that he had made any such statement. "I have never said anything of this sort," the Minister said while clearing his position. "I'm not irresponsible person. They (Opposition) have no issue, now they are resorting to this," he said. 

Interestingly, when Usman Majeed made the statement in the House, Muhammad Sayeed Akhoon was not present there. The NC member Dr Mehboob Beg described the issue as serious and asked the Speaker to take note of the matter. Later, when Akhoon returned, he reiterated his earlier statement. On this, the Minister said he was not expecting such thing from him. "I told him that the headquarters of 15 Corps is like our Secretariat and checking there is indispensable for our safety. I live in the Sonwar area and he also lives there. And if checking is going on there it is to our safety. They (NC) don't have any issue and now they are stooping so low," the Minister said. The comment annoyed NC's Sharief Din Shariq, who shouted, "We have enough issues." Earlier, Muhammad Sayeed Akhoon raised the issue of frequent checking by Army at Sonwar. He said the checking by troops have created problems for passengers. "The journey from Islamabad to Srinagar is hardly one hour, but the routine checking has made it a three-hour journey," Akhoon added. 

INDIAN PM TO LOOK INTO TROOP REDUCTION, DETENTIONS

New Delhi, Sept 5: The Mirwaiz faction of Hurriyat Conference met Prime Minister Manmohan Singh on September 5. In a joint statement issued after the meet, both sides have agreed to carry forward the dialogue process to find an honorable and durable solution to the Kashmir problem. The Prime Minister and Hurriyat leaders reaffirmed their faith in peaceful resolution of all issues pertaining to Jammu and Kashmir as the prime minister reiterated his commitment to ensuring a life of peace, self-respect and dignity for the people of Jammu and Kashmir. 

The meeting started at 7 pm and ended at 9:45pm. The Prime Minister said if there were a cessation of violence and an end to infiltration, conditions would be created for reduction of armed forces. He also agreed to review all cases of those held in detention and gave his assurance that the government would take all necessary measures to guard against human rights violations. Singh also agreed to a time-bound review of all those held under Public Safety Act and POTA. "We stressed that Kashmir is a political problem and not administrative. And we sought an honorable solution to the Kashmir problem for the sake of people of the state," Mirwaiz Umar told local media from New Delhi. This is the first direct meeting between the separatists and the UPA-Ied government at the Center. Welcoming the first-ever talks between the Prime Minister and the moderate Hurriyat faction, Pakistan on September 5 said it would strengthen the peace process with India. "We welcome it. We think it will strengthen the peace process between India and Pakistan. The people of Kashmir and Hurriyat are important for durable peace," said Foreign Office spokesperson Nayeem Khan. The Hurriyat leaders might also meet Congress President Sonia Gandhi on Tuesday. The talks assume special significance since they come just nine days before a meeting between Singh and Pakistan President Pervez Musharraf on the sidelines of the UN General Assembly session in New York. Mirwaiz Umar is also expected to meet Musharraf in New York on September 17.

FAROOQ KHAN TO BE REINSTATED SOON: MUFTI 
Jammu Sept 6: Exonerated by the CBI in the much-publicized Pathribal massacre case, suspended IPS officer Farooq Khan, would be reinstated soon, Chief Minister Mufti Mohammad Sayeed said in Jammu on Sept 6. 

"He (Farooq khan) has to be reinstated and he will be reinstated soon," Sayeed told reporters at Udhampur, some 65 kms from Jammu. 

He was responding to a question on Centre's recommendation to revoke suspension of the IPS officer in the wake of clean chit given to him by the CBI. 

The CBI, which had finalized its report on Pathribal take encounter in March 2000, found six Army officers guilty but gave clean chit to khan who was suspended in April 2003. 

The state government suspended the IPS officer for allegedly killing five innocents and later labeling them as militants five years ago. 

The CBI sources said during investigations into the case, there was no evidence or a statement suggesting involvement of khan, an IPS officer of 1996 batch, in the killings. The five were killed on March 26, 2000 in Pathribal in South Kashmir. The Army and security forces claimed they were mercenaries responsible for gunning down of 35 members of Sikh community on March 21 when then US President Bill Clinton on a visit to India. 

HOW CAN A DEAD MAN GIVE DIRECTIONS TO MY SON'?'

Srinagar, Sept 9: For Bashir Ahmad Dar, the draconian Public Safety Act (PSA) is "hydra monster if which has caught his son in its tentacles and, in the legal arena, when Bashir tries to cut off the monster's head, another crops up. Though court quashed detention of his son Shahid Ahmad, the state government detained him for the second time under the PSA, the grounds of detention being, according to the father, ridiculous.

Shahid, a student of computer engineering at SSM College, was arrested on August 4, 2004 and three cases were registered against him in Police Station Kothi Bagh. He continued his studies in jail and appeared in the 4th and 5th semester engineering examination held in August 2004 and February 2005 and passed both the examinations. 

Bashir, a resident of Professors Colony, Sadrabal Srinagar, challenged his son's detention in the High Court, which quashed the detention on April 19, 2005. Shahid was also granted bail by 3rd additional session's judge on June 17 and June 18, 2005 in two cases in the Kothi Bagh police station. With the High Court order in his hand the father rushed to the Superintendent Central Jail Srinagar hoping that his son will be released. However, instead of releasing his son, police shifted Shahid to CIK on June 22, 2005 and detained him there for seven days. On June 28, he was shifted to Kothi Bagh police station and was detained there for 23 days. Exasperated the father rushed to Jammu and met Prof. Bhim Singh who is also chairman of state legal committee and sought his help for Shahid's release. Singh raised the issue with the additional DIG C1D. Still Shahid was not released. And another case was registered against him in Kothibagh police station He was re-detained under PSA vide order OMS/PSA on July 28, 2005 issued by the district magistrate Srinagar. Bashir terms the grounds for detention in the second PSA order as "non application of mind." "The grounds of detention in both the PSA orders indicate innocence of my son," Bashir told local media. "In the first detention order he has been named as the owner of the car-bearing registration number JK04-0234, which accordingly to police was used by him to ferry militants. And in the second detention order he was (again) shown as owner of the same car carrying militants," Bashir said. One of the charges in the second order is that a militant named Mohsin asked Shahid to bring two 'foreign' militants from some place in October 2003. However, in the same detention order police says the same militant (Mohsin) was killed in a Fidayeen attack on Greenway Hotel on August 28, 2003, Bashir said. "It is ironical that a dead man is giving directions to my son two months after his death, he said. The second detention order accuses Shahid of arranging meeting with the militants active in Srinagar at the time when he was presented before court for hearing. "'The detainees are brought to Court premises by security personnel and immediately after hearing of the cases are being rushed to detention centers. I wonder how my son arranged meetings of militants," he said. In the second detention order it is shown that "my son's first detention order bearing number OMS/PSA/14 on July 14, 2004 was quashed by the High Court. "But the fact is that my son was never booked under this detention order," he said. 

GOVT. GUNMEN ATROCITIES TRIGGER PROTEST

Kupwara, Sept 9: Hundreds of residents of Batapora, Hyhama and other adjoining villages of Kupwara demonstrated on September 9 in front of district police headquarters against the ruling PDP, daily harassment, extortion, and interference into their personal affairs by government gunmen (lkhwanis) sheltered by police and Army. 

Following the assassination of a 'slightly kind hearted' government gunman named Nadir Wad son of Ghulam Rasool Wad by rival Ikhwanis, the residents said that the gunmen have made their lives a hell. "They are hired murderers of government, they killed hundreds in the past and we fear they would kill us too. They first milked Pakistan and now are getting sustenance from India. They indulge in extortion, harassment, arbitrate and force judgments in our affairs like marriages or marital discords. After dusk they wear combat dresses and hamper our movement. They ask us to sew clothes and demand money," the protesters said. 

The death of Nadir Wad has added to their woes, the protesters asked government to unveil his killers because they "feel caught in the rivalry of two devils." 

Among the protesters was Salima, wife of the killed government gunman. She says, "He (Nadir Wad) would tell them (other government gunmen) not to commit atrocities. They were after him for a pretty long time and made six attempts on his life." 

Senior Superintendent of Police for Kupwara district, Sunil Dutt, pacified the protesters. He told reporters that police has got important clues about the murder of the government gunmen from a man who was arrested in this connection some days ago. Dutt said police wouldn't allow government gunmen to commit excesses on people. 

GUNMEN TARGET SPO’S FAMILIES IN UDHAMPUR: 6 KILLED

Jammu. Sept 10: Six persons including five minors were killed and seven others critically injured when unidentified gunmen overnight attacked the houses of two Special Police Officers (SPOs) in the remote village of Dharmari in Udhampur district. 

The gunmen targeted the SPOs family who had migrated from village Thoru and Basan two months ago following threats by suspected militants.

Official sources said that a group of seven to eight gunmen struck at Dharmari and asked Barkat Ali and Talib Hussain, both SPOs, to come out. But the duo refused to obey their diktats. After this the assailants hurled a number of grenades and opened indiscriminate firing, killing six persons which included five minors, while eight others including both the SPOs sustained critical injuries in the firing. 

The civilians killed in the incident were identified as Razia Bano (14) daughter of Ghulam Nabi, Showkat Ali (13) son of Ghulam Nabi, Mumtaz Ahmad (15) son of Bashir, Muhammad Usman (4) son of Rafiq, Umar Bilal (1) son of Rafiq and Molvi Jamal Din Lone (35) all hailing from Thoru and Basan villages. 

The injured shifted to Government Medical Collage GMC were identified as Begum Jan wife of Muhammad Rafiq, Mishra wife of Barket Ali, Talib Hussian son of Muhammad Jamil, Altaf Hussian son of Muhammad Jamil, Ghulam Ali son of Noora, Razia daughter of Muhammed Jamil and Barket Ali son of Ghulam Ali. 

It is worthwhile to mention that a BSF camp is hardly at a stone throw from Dharmari where the incident occurred. "But during the hour long gun-battle, the BSF failed to reach the spot," said an injured SPO Barket Ali, adding that if the forces would have arrived at time, some lives would have been saved. 

"We retaliated with our service guns for one hour and forced the gunmen to flee from the spot, but it was very unfortunate that BSF and Army camping in the area failed to rescue our families," Barket said, adding that the forces reached the spot in the morning. 

When contacted DIG Doda Udhampur range, Satvir Gupta said that these persons migrated to Dharmari from village Thoru and Bassan last month due to threats from militants. "We have launched a hunt to trace the culprits responsible for the act and I was personally supervising the operation in the area," he said, adding that the bodies of the killed have been shifted to the respected villages for the last rituals. 

TROOPS MANHANDLE SP, POLICE FILES CASE

Handwara, Sep 1: Police registered a case against troops for manhandling Superintendent of police (SP) Muhammad Shafi Khan. According to the sources, the troops of Road opening party (ROP) physically abused SP police lines in Handwara Chowk while exchanging heated arguments with him. They also didn't allow his gypsy to pass, sources added. 

SP Muhammad Shafi Khan talking to local media said, "I was in the vehicle along with my escort going towards Kralagund Langate police station at I: 30 pm. Convoy of troops was also passing and as my vehicle reached Handwara Chowk, ROP stopped my vehicle and ordered me to park it, which I refused. “ This irked them and they started abusing me. Our verbal duel continued for half an hour,” Muhammad Shafi added. In the meanwhile, police personnel of Handwara police station reached the spot fearing open fire by troopers. 

Expressing displeasure over the incident, inner circles of police and people said, "We will urge the senior police officials to take up the matter with senior army officers,” An FIR No. 236/2005 has been registered in the police station. 

When contacted defense spokesman, Lt Colonel V K Batra told local media, "Muhammad Shafi is a DSP and his promotion order has been issued. When Muhammad Shafi reached Handwara Chowk, there was a convoy coming from the opposite direction. Since the road width is very less, two vehicles can't move in opposite direction. Therefore the sentry on duty stopped the vehicle and requested the DSP to stop his vehicle till the convoy passes, as there was no space. The DSP didn't stop and over-ran the boots of the sentry, since the convoy was coming in opposite direction, so he could not proceed further. The DSP lost his temper, went back and lodged an FIR of which we are not aware. No scuffle and no manhandling took place" 

HUNGER STRIKE IN CENTRAL JAIL

Srinagar, Sept 10: Detainees in Srinagar Central Jail Saturday went on hunger strike to protest their continued detention in the jail without trial. Kashmir Mass Movement (KMM) leader Farida Behanji following her visit to the jail revealed this. According to a KMM release, Farida was denied permission when she sought to meet detainees in the jail especially Dukhtaran chief Asiya Andrabi and her seven associates. Expressing concern over the prolonged detention of Bilal Sidiquee and Zamrooda Habib, Farida said, "The so called peace process holds no ground in the wake of geared up terror machine of India against the oppressed people of J&K." Bilal Sidiquee, the statement said, has been behind the bars for last 14 years. Farida also condemned the denial of permission to meet Andrabi and appealed the womenfolk particularly the intellectual females to voice their concern on what she termed "War against women in Kashmir." Meanwhile, the High Court Bar Association (HCBA) Saturday organized an emergency meeting with HCBA chairman Mian Abdul Qayoom. The Bar expressed serious concern over entry of police personnel of Rainawari police station into Central Jail on Friday. In the jail, the HCBA said, police pounced on inmates and beat them up ruthlessly. The HCBA said that some detainees were stated to be in critical condition. The Bar has taken strong note of the police action and has decided to lodge protest against it. 

VILLAGERS PROTEST AGAINST ALLEGED KILLING OF ARMY PORTERS

 JAMMU, Sept 1: About 500 villagers of Magu Chak, Nadyal, Lalyal and other villages under Nikki Tawi area, staged a demonstration at Satwari Chowk for two and a half hours this morning, asking compensation for the families of the four laborers who were allegedly killed in a fake encounter by Army in 2004 April. 

The demonstrators including wife of Ashok Kumar, resident of Satwari, one of the dead persons demanded grant of compensation to the victims' families under the SRO 43, which entailed a government job and Rs 2 lakh in cash. Besides, they also wanted that the culprits behind the "fake encounters" be punished severely.

 The traffic on Satwari intersection was brought to a halt for more than two hours with vehicles stuck in jam on all the four roads leading to the Satwari Chowk. Long route buses, minibuses and private vehicles had to be diverted through other routes to enter the city while the villagers raised slogans against the incident. 

The standoff continued till 12.30 pm, when Deputy Commissioner, Jammu, Hirdesh Kumar Singh arrived on the spot, talked to the demonstrators and took note of their demand. “ I have asked for preliminary report of the incident and after the official inquiry is complete, state government would take a decision accordingly” DC asserted. He further assured the victims' family members that in case the "fake encounters" were found to be true the government would release compensation under SRO 43 to which the victims' families would be entitled then. 

For the time being, DC offered financial help through Red Cross Society, Jammu and Kashmir. "The state would offer financial compensation for the time being through the Red Cross Society since official compensation can only be provided after the inquiry was complete and the fake encounters were found to be true." 

The villagers also expressed resentment against the Army.  Paramjit, Sarpanch, Lalyal, one of the demonstrators, alleged, "Initially, the army authorities met us regularly and listened to our grievances but, suddenly, on August 31, when we approached the Army officers at Brigade Headquarters, they refused to meet us. It was then that we decided to hold this demonstration to invite government's attention towards plight of the victims' families." The Sarpanch also threatened that if the inquiry was not completed within stipulated time and the culprits, according to them, who are the Army personnel, brought to book, the residents of 45 villages of Nikki Tawi area would continue their agitation. 

The demonstrators dispersed only around 1 pm and the traffic movement restored subsequently. Earlier on April 13,2004 that four laborers, Rampal, Bhushan Lal, Satpal and Ashok Kumar, were picked up by Army from Gole Market area of Gandhi Nagar to work at a construction site of Army. For the next eighteen months, these laborers remained missing. It was only eighteen months later when one of the victims' families received an anonymous letter that claimed that all the four had been taken to Kashmir and killed in "fake encounters."

PATHRIBAL FAKE ENCOUNTER: CBI HOLDS 4 ARMY OFFICERS GUILTY

Srinagar, Sep 1: Holding four officers of Army's Rashtriya Rifles (RR) guilty in the much publicized Pathribal fake encounter that shook the valley five years ago, Central Bureau of Investigation (CBI) on completion of investigation has recommended proceedings against the guilty. 

A CBI team led by P. Digra held the investigation into the killing of five civilians by Army in the fake encounter in March 2000 in Pathribal hamlet of Islamabad, a local news agency said on September 1. 

CBI completed the investigation on July 7 and held Cot. Ajay Saksena, Major D.P Singh, Company Commander Suresh Sharma and Captain Amit Saksena of 7 RR guilty in the case. The findings were submitted to Central government with the recommendation to take action against the guilty. 

Its pertinent to mention here that in March 2000 army killed five persons in Pathribal forests in Islamabad claiming those killed as foreign mercenaries involved in the massacre of 36 Sikhs in Chati-Singhpora. The massacre of Sikhs coincided with the India visit of then US President Bill Clinton. However the case took a critical turn when the relatives of the deceased identified the bodies of the civilians, all residents of Islamabad district. The incident triggered massive protests across the valley and government had ordered exhumation of the bodies for DNA test. The test samples of the deceased matched with their relatives and the case was transferred to CBI. 

It later turned out that the Army had arrested five civilians across Islamabad district and later killed them in a fake encounter in Pathribal. 

Referring to the Administrative Tribunal Chandigarh, which acquitted the then Senior Superintendent of Police (SSP) Islamabad Farooq Ahmad Khan, CBI in its report said Khan should be allowed to join his duty. Army spokesman CoI. Batra refused to comment on the issue saying he will first go through the CBI report, the news agency added.  

BSF DE-INDUCTION BY 2007

Srinagar, Sept 12: Terming its 15-year long role in Counter Insurgency (CI) operations across the Valley as "landmark success", BSF on Monday said it has started the "hand over of its responsibility" to CRPF. Out of the total of 34 battalions operational across the Valley, 9 have been de-inducted this month from Srinagar and Islamabad districts, and rest of the process will be accomplished by 2007, top BSF officials announced. Addressing reporters here, Inspector General BSF, JS Negi said except for one battalion on duty at Raj Bhawan and Gupkar Road Srinagar, "nobody" from his force was on the CI duty in the city. Lauding its operations since 1990 when BSF was called for the CI operations in the Valley, DIG BSF K Srinivasan said BSF has killed 2653 militants including 1016 foreign militants till August 2005. Besides, 9735 militants were apprehended and 928 surrendered. And 10707. Weapons and around nine lakh ammunition rounds were recovered since 1990. Whereas BSF lost its 697 personnel and 3733 were wounded, he added. The landmark success of BSF in the recent past includes the killing of as many as 38 militants leaders of top hierarchical level, notable being the killing of Gazi Baba," K Srinivasan said adding that his killing was the "turning point". Commenting over what he termed human face of BSF, the DIG said the force followed the principle of "avoidance of collateral damages, and if compelled to do so, to be minimal by carrying out the operations in a most surgical manner." Lauding his force for having done least number of human rights violations, D/G BSF K Srinivasan said: "There is no gain saying that the human rights violation cases against BSF has been lowest among all the security forces and BSF did not have compunction in punishing the guilty." However, the officials asserted that there was no detainee in their custody. "We had handed them over to police: the IGP JS Negi said. 

The official also said "BSF after going through this trial and tribulation played pivotal role in bringing the situation to the current normalcy level." The officials also lauded their role in the conduction of "Amarnath Yatra by providing route security, ensuring incident free bus service from Srinagar to Muzaffarabad by providing security cover on 94 kms stretch, assistance during the snowfall and reaching out to the needy” 

CRPF TAKES OVER SRINAGAR

'50 militants active in city'
Srinagar, Sept 12: The inspector general of Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) Ranjit Sinha on Monday said CRPF personnel have taken over the charge of Srinagar city and parts of Islamabad and Baramulla districts from Border Security Force (BSF). "The replacement has been done on the basis of charter of work assigned to the forces for which they have been constituted, according to the recommendation of the group of ministers constituted after Kargil war," Sinha told media-persons adding the BSF have a role to play at borders. IG CRPF said, ''as per the recommendation of State government that wanted that only one force should take charge for proper coordination with police, we took over." The CRPF, according to Sinha, would have replaced BSF earlier, but its engagements in Northeast and in Bihar elections delayed the proceedings. He said: "five additional battalions of CRPF have been deployed in Srinagar and four battalions would replace the BSF in Islamabad district."' Ranjit said "the main aim of CRPF would be to assist the police in maintaining law and order situation in valley and to secure vital installations, highways and VIPs." He further said that 24 per cent of the total force is involved in counter insurgency operation. According to the IG, 48 battalions are presently deployed in Valley, 25 of them in Srinagar City. When asked the CRPF personnel suffered heavy causality in suicide attacks after it took over the charge from BSF earlier this year, Sinha responded by saying "the personnel suffered loses as they were deployed at crowded locality the strategy which went against them." Sinha said, the personnel have started evacuating the buildings situated in crowded localities and we have asked the state government to provide a secure accommodation" adding that they have vacated 25 hotels and have moved to Bemina police housing colony. About the number of militants presently operating in the Srinagar City, Sinha put the number at 50. Rubbishing the reports carried in certain sections of media in New Delhi that CRPF personnel were not yet capable to manage the affairs in Valley, the IG while terming the reports as misinformation campaign launched by people having vested interests said the personnel are ready to take up the situation in a competent and effective manner. Sinha assured the troops would be people friendly and there won't be any human rights abuses. When asked what were senior CRPF officials doing for growing number of suicide incidents happening in the force, Sinha said the troops were working under stress and such incidents also happen in other forces. "Those personnel resort to such acts who are not geared up to cope up with such stress," he added. 

RETURN OF PANDITS: GOVT. SLOW-PEDALS

Srinagar, Sept 19: Political noises about the return of Pandits to valley may be getting shriller in J&K; the truth is that the government is doing the opposite. Work has started on 5,2452 two-room tenements in Jammu, incurring a cost of about Rs. 200 crore, to house migrants. The construction work alone will take three years, according to Relief Commissioner BA Runiyal. 

Does this mean government does not believe its own return rhetoric? "No, that is not the case, " says Mehbooba Mufti. " it is just that the pundits in Jammu are living in inhuman conditions and government needs to do something about it," she says. 

The return of pundits, Mehbooba concedes, is going to be a long haul. "It (return) is not going to happen within six months. Migrants, will conditions allow return in phases, " She says? On the other hand, the impression given out by the state government is that return or migrants is round the corner. Two-room sets at Shiekhpora, Mattan and one-room units at Kherbhawani in Kashmir Valley are far smaller in number. Being built at a cost of over Rs 40 crores, these houses are being constructed to accommodate the returning Pandits. 

Revenue Minister Hakeem Yaseen had said in August that the return of Kashmir Pundits was a commitment of the ruling coalition and times has come to fulfill it. " Time is not far when Kashmir Pandits and Muslims will be living like a community similar to the time before the onset or militancy," Yaseen says. 

What lent further impetus to the process was a visit by a representative Pundit delegation in July and their emotional meeting with the leaders of the moderate Hurriyat. The government says it had received 1,600 applications from Pundits who want to return to the valley and that the first batch of 350 migrants will return in October. The Jammu and Kashmir All Migrants' Coordination Committee even brushed aside the threat by a group of four militants organizations - AI Nasireen, AI Arifeen, Save Kashmir Movement and Farzandan-e-Millat and expressed its resolve to return. 

But according to Mehbooba, the government is not in the mood to force the return. " Return, if they are voluntary, are welcome," she says adding, "it is a sensitive matter. As such, the whole process has to be low-profile." 

Runiyal says the construction of tenements in Jammu was a temporary measure, even when he estimated the completion in about three years. " When Prime Minister Manmohan Singh saw the pathetic condition of the migrants, he called for improvement in their living conditions he says. The construction of more than 5,000 sets in Jammu is, however, seen as putting the return of migrants in doubt. 

The impression at the local level is that the government, rhetoric apart, is not interested in any pro-active push for pundits' return and wants the process to start on its own, "in a natural fashion". The members of the community are looking forward to celebrate the festival of Anant Chaturdasi at a temple in South Kashmir after 15 years. 

HC NOTICES TO RR COMMANDANT, HIS DEPUTY

For 'harassing and threatening policemen inside police station'

Srinagar, Sept 17: The High Court has issued notice to RR commandant and Assistant Commandant for harassing and threatening police personnel. 

On night of September 11, 2000, a group of militants attacked 34 RR camp at Beerwah Budgam and got subsequently killed in the gunfight with troops after inflicting damage to the troops, local news agency CNS said. 

After the attack, the RR troopers started, harassing the police personnel on September 2000. The troops led by commandant Sheshidaran and assistant commandant BS Bodiya raided the police station Beerwah, CNS said quoting sources. 

During the raid, sentry of the police station was overpowered and station House Officer and other police personnel were subjected to identification parade. The SHO and police personnel were harassed by troops and police station was thoroughly searched. Police lodged criminal case against the commandant and assistant commandant under F1R 212/2000 RPC451, 342, 508. 

Police in the FIR accused the Army of forcing their entry into police station. Police also accused army of threatening to blow the police station up in case militants attacked troops in future. 

The challan was produced before the Munsiff Judge Magam on July 23, 2005. 

The court issued notice to the respondent. Following the court notice the government advocate and advocate of RR Zaffar Iqbal presented their arguments before the court. 

On 23 July 2003, the judicial magistrate Magam reserved decision on the case stating under section 125 of army act, the consent of government of India was necessary in the case. The judicial magistrate asked the police to seek consent from government of India in the case. 

However, the Senior Superintendent of police Budgam filed an appeal against the decision before the High Court. 

On September 16 the additional advocate General Muhammad Ameen Rathore while pleading police case said, " if you are going to prosecute an army person, you can either choose to get the trial in ordinary criminal court or he can be court marshaled. The army has to exercise the option, which it has not exercised so far." 

After hearing the arguments Justice Hakeem 1mtiyaz issued notices to the army commanders in the case. 

3 SCHOOL CHILDREN INJURED IN DODA IED BLAST

JAMMU, Sept 18: Three children were injured critically in an Improvised Explosive Device (IED) blast at Dehra near Nawapachi, in Doda district while as three over-ground workers of a militant outfit were apprehended at Dhara Mohra in Surankote Poonch. 

Security forces nabbed a Pak national in general area of Poonch district while police busted an ultras' hideout in upper reaches in Sanora Top in Sudhmahadev in Chenani of Udhampur district. 

Three children were injured critically in an improvised explosive device (IED) blast at Dehra near Nawapachi in Doda district. Reports said, the trio on way back home from school was injured in the IED blast. 

They have been identified as Shahnawaz (13), his sister Jamsheeda (10) and Nazia (9). All of them were admitted to a hospital. 

In another incident, security forces apprehended three over-ground workers of a militant outfit said a Defence Ministry release issued here. 

Release said, based on a specific input about a hideout security forces launched 'a search operation in Kavia Mohala in Dhara Mohra area, six km east of Surankote and arrested three over-ground workers. 

They have been identified as Atta Mohammed, son of Salim Ali, Mohammed Sharief, son of Atta Mohammed and Mohammed Riaz. 

The apprehended OGWs were later handed over to Surankote police for sustained interrogation. 

A Pakistan National was nabbed by security forces at general area, seven km northwest of Poonch at around 0830 hours today. 

The arrested youth has been identified as Mohammed Afzal, 21, son of Mohammed Sadiq of Abbaspur, near Bandi-Gopalpur in Pakistan administered Kashmir. Acting on a tip off police late last night launched a search operation in upper reaches of Sanora Top in Sudhmahadev in Chenani in 

Udhampur district. 

Police reports said, on specific information about movement of some ultras, a police party launched a search operation in the higher reaches and came across an abandoned hideout. 

           Reports said, some arms and ammunition were recovered from the hideout. The seizure included one UBGL, four UBGL grenades. 129 AAM-UM-4 cells, one adaptor, one booklet, and some ration items. 

Meanwhile, security forces during a search operation recovered 32 black colored sticks, probably dynamite sticks from a natural cave in Akhorpathri six km northeast of Mohra Barchai, said a Defence Ministry release issued here. Release further said that sticks wrapped in a polythene bag were hidden in a cave. 

TOOTHLESS RIGHTS BODY SEEKS BITING POWERS; NO IMPROVEMENT IN HR SITUATION: CHAIRMAN

Srinagar, Sept 22: Tasked to safeguard the rights of the people, the State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) on 22nd September expressed its helplessness saying its credibility was at stake in the conflict-ridden Valley. "As far as implementation of our recommendations is concerned we are helpless. The credibility of the commission is being eroded and set to decline. 

"We have received 3187 cases and disposed off 2112 with the recommendations of ex-gratia and compassionate appointments to the government. Ironically, we didn't receive action taken reports," the SHRC chairman (retd) Justice AM Mir told a news conference in Srinagar. Criticizing the government, Mir said the commission was working in a difficult situation. "But we have to understand civil liberties and protection of human rights is the luxury of the democratic and decent societies” he added. 

Justice Mir said there was no improvement in the human rights situation in the state with reports of abuses trickling in from Kupwara, Doda and Poonch districts against the Army and the police. "I took strong notice of reports of violation by Army and wrote to Defence and Home Ministry. However, they were angry as they feel it's not our jurisdiction to demand action against Army by virtue of Armed Forces Special Power Act (APSPA)." The government, according to the SHRC chairman, has not provided the rights body with an independent investigation agency to be headed by a separate IGP. The last IGP, he said, was transferred from the commission in 2002. "Since then the commission is without an investigation agency and it is difficult for us to investigate the cases," he rued. Justice Mir claimed the SHRC was an autonomous body. "We are acting in a professional way despite many problems including financial constraints. Our work is to tell the truth. We have strong teeth to bite but the government's indifference has made us a toothless tiger whipping a dead horse," he added. 

SRO 43 FILES GATHER DUST IN PULWAMA

Srinagar, Sept 22: Ishtiaq Ahmad Bhato son of Ghulam Hassan Bhat of Prichoo Pulwama died in a grenade blast at Murran Chowk on December 14, 1994. Since then, his brother, Imtiyaz Ahmad, a graduate, has been making rounds of the government offices for the appointment under SRO 43. Imtiyaz the eldest one in the family of six, which includes his aged parents and two sisters, has been pleading his ease before the stonehearted bureaucrats and politicians for the last 11 years, but to no avail. "I pleaded my case before Minister of State for Works, Syed Bashir and People's Democratic Party general secretary, Tariq Hamid Qarra but they too couldn't help me in any way," Imtiyaz said. The officials at Deputy Commissioner office Pulwama have been dilly-dallying my case on one pretext or the other. They say they don't have the record of my case," he added. Imtiyaz said, "many cases falling under the SRO which were submitted at the DC office much later than my case have been provided jobs. But I am at loss to understand what mistake I have done." Before coming to power, the PDP president Mehbooba Mufti, Imtiyaz claimed, had promised him of help if I voted for her party.  

"Mehbooba in the house of PDP's Block President Master Abdul Gani Bhat promised me that if I along with my family members voted for her party she would provide a job to me. But when PDP came to power, I wasn't allowed even to meet her once," Imtiyaz said in a sarcastic tone. Despite having graduation in Education, Imtiyaz is doing a laborers job where from he gets Rs 90 a day. "After my brother's death, my father isn't in a position to do the labor job and all responsibility of family lies on my shoulders." The Personal Assistant to DC Pulwama said they had nearly 200 SRO-related cases pending. "These cases weren't complete in 1998 when posts were available. This time we are helpless as there is a blanket ban on recruitment," he told local media. 

PROTESTS IN KULGAM AGAINST CIVILIAN'S KILLING

Srinagar Sept 25: Massive protest demonstration was held at Bhan Ashmuji, Kulgam in Islamabad district on September 25 by thousands of mourners against the alleged murder of a civilian by soldiers of 9 Rashtriya Rifles, army's counterinsurgency force in the state. Army says the civilian was mistaken for a militant and shot during an ambush. The protesting mourners shouting slogans against army, India and Mufti led coalition government, said that troops of 9 RR at 8 PM on Saturday fired indiscriminately at Tariq Ahmad Para, 25, son of Abdul Rashid and his two friends Sabzar Ahmad Shah and Showkat Ahmad Shah, sons of Abdul Majid Shah, when they were walking through a path in the village carrying carpets on shoulders. 

While Tariq Ahmad succumbed to wounds at hospital, Sabzar and Showkat were saved miraculously. The troops arrested Sabzar Ahmad after killing Tariq Ahmad. The mourners said that soldiers didn't warn the trio before firing a volley of fire at them. However, the SHO of Kulgam police station, quoting the officers of 9 RR said the ambush party had asked the trio to stop but when they didn't heed to the call, soldiers fired at them. The additional deputy commissioner of Islamabad has ordered a judicial probe into the incident. Police was rushed to the area to quell the protest demonstration. The incident comes barely two months after the army killed three children in Bagargund village of Kupwara district in a similar way triggering a valley-wide outcry and condemnation. 

On Sept 26, a day after the killing the High Court Bar Association (HCBA) has come out with a detailed report about the incident saying the troops killed him in cold blood. 

Bar report said: "Tariq along with his cousins Sabzar Ahmad Shah, was going to Bhan village to hand over a carpet to one person in Mah village. When he moved to Bhan from Mah hamlet, troops fired on him and killed him. Frightened over the incident Showkat fled away from the scene. However, Sabzar Ahmed Shah was arrested by troops. 

HCBA said that villages found five bullet marks on Tariq's body. The report said that Tariq was only son among five sisters and was recently married. "'He was so poor, that his father had no money to arrange for his shroud. It was his neighbors who arranged for Tariq's last rites." The HCBA said. 

Though protests were lodged against the murder, so far no action had been taken in this regard.

SAVE AFZAL GURU COMM FORMED SEPARATISTS, LAWYERS SEEK REVOCATION OF DEATH PENALTY

Srinagar, Sept 24: Cutting across party and ideological lines, the separatist leaders and prominent lawyers from within and outside the state on September 24 joined together and demanded death sentence against Guru to be commuted. 

The separatist leaders Syed Ali Shah Geelani, Shabir Ahmad Shah, Muhammad Yasin Malik and the High Court Bar Association President Mian Abdul Qayoom on September 24 assembled during a seminar on human rights. Addressing the seminar, the chairman of a faction of Hurriyat Conference, Syed Ali Shah Geelani said Kashmiri detainees were being subjected to worst in jails. He said there are hundreds of detainees who are languishing in jails and are not being produced before the courts. He said that detainees even if tried are not given chance to defend themselves. Meanwhile, a resolution was passed after the seminar by the participants, which read, "At a meeting of the Society for the Protection of Detainees and Prisoners' Rights we were deeply shocked to learn that Muhammad Afzal has been sentenced to death by the Supreme Court of India without having an opportunity to defend himself. In Sarabjit Singh's case the Indian Prime Minister and Indian media has been campaigning with the Pakistan authorities to spare his life. And for the sake of Indo-Pakistan friendship process Sarabjit Singh's life will be spared but is it not a contradiction that the same leaders think that Afzal’s life needs to be sacrificed at the altar of false notion of national security. We resolve to launch a Kashmir wide signature campaign in support of our demand that the death sentence on Afzal be commuted." The resolution signed by Muhammad Yasin Malik, Shabir Ahmad Shah, Main Abdul Qayoom and other leaders. Later the separatist leaders lodged protest near Ganta Ghar Lal Chowk. 

MURDER ACCUSED GOVT. GUNMEN ARRESTED

CONFESS TO MURDER TO MANY CIVILIANS, SAYS SSP; WERE WORKING FOR ARMY

Kupwara, Sept 25: With the arrest of two dreaded government gunmen working for army, Police on September 25 claimed to have solved many murder cases. Talking to reporters, SSP Kupwara Sunil Dutt said a police team led by Parvez Ahmad SHO of Batpora Police Station arrested Inayat Khan son of Niyamatullah of Guchipora Batpora and Mumtaz Khan son of Yar Khan of Haihama from a house at Batpora. '"They have confessed that they have killed many civilians in the district. After their arrest we are receiving many complaints from the people against them," the SSP said. The accused, the SSP said are wanted in the murder of Nadir War son of Ghulam Rasool War of Batpora and Muhammad Yousuf Dar a numberdar and a Sarpanch. "'Inayat hatched a conspiracy with Mumtaz to kill War as he coveted his wife. And when War resented he was murdered on September 2," the SSP said adding a case of murder (FIR 273, Section 302) was registered against the accused. The residents of the area have demanded stringent punishment against the accused. " Inayat and Mumtaz had made our lives miserable. They used to barge into our houses and demand ransom. If anybody dared to offer resistance they used to kill him in public," the residents said. "We are ready to help police and testify against them in many criminal cases in the Court. We want justice and punishment to the accused," they said. The SSP said the accused government gunmen were providing information to local army units about the movement of militants. 

NEWS IN BRIEF

· YOUTH KILLED BY MILITNATS IN POONCH 

JAMMU, Sep 4: Militants killed a youth near Surankote in Poonch district. Police sources said Mohammad Younas (16), abducted by militants from his residence at Surankote on August 18, was killed by militants on September 4. Police from Surankote forests recovered the bullet-ridden body on September 4 evening, sources added. The Sources said militants killed him as they suspected him to be an informer. 

· VDC MEMBER SHOOTS HIMSELF DEAD

JAMMU, Sept 4: A Village Defense Committee (VDC) member allegedly shot himself to death with his official weapon in Pouni Block of Reasi Tehsil in Udhampur district September 4 evening. 

The deceased VDC member has been identified as Gian Chand 52, son of Moku Ram of Chetr Nallah in Pouni block. The incident occurred at around 7.30 pm. Reports said, the deceased was head of the VDC. However, reason behind killing himself could not be ascertained. A police party was sent to Chetr Nallah, said reports. 

· BRIBE FOR EX-GRATIA

Srinagar, Sept l3: The state Vigilance Organisation (SVO) has produced challan against the then Nazir in Deputy Commissioner Anantnag office in the court of special judge anti-corruption for demanding and accepting a bribe margin from ex-gratia relief sanctioned to a father after the death of his son in militancy related incident. 

The SVO statement here said it has produced the challan against the then Nazir Ghulam Muhammad Lone of Abdul Khaliq Lone in the court of Special Judge Anti- corruption in a case FIR number 21/2003 in police station Vigilance organization Kashmir under section 5(1) (d) r/w 5 (2) p.c Act 2006-BK/161-RPC. 

The case was registered on the complaint of one Ghulam Muhammad Bhat of Sofipora Islamabad who on August 8, 2003 alleged that the accused 

Ghulam Muhammad Lone was demanding bribe of Rs.30, 000 from him 

for release of ex-gratia amount sanctioned by the Deputy Commissioner Anantnag in connection with the death of his son in a militancy related incident on August 15,2002. 

The vigilance organization officials laid trap and caught Lone red-handed while accepting the bribe from the complainant and the bribe money of Rs 10.000 was recovered from his possession. 

· 188 NABBED IN 34 DAYS

Srinagar, Sept l4: Nearly 200 persons including nine activists of Dukhtaran-e-Millat and four militants were arrested from across the valley by security forces in the past 34-days, locals news agency UNS reported. 

It said in the first five days of September alone, 54 persons were nabbed, taking the number to a total of 188. 

On September 1, seven persons were nabbed. The next day, nine activists of Dukhtaran -e-Millat including its Chief Asiya Andrabi were arrested. Elsewhere the same day six civilians were arrested. 

On September 3, besides a militant of Hizbul Mujahideen outfit, 11 civilians were taken into custody. On 4th, 6 civilians were nabbed while on September5, when All Parties Hurriyat Conference leaders held talks with Prime Minister Manmohan Singh in New Delhi, 24 persons were arrested under various charges. 

Meanwhile, local news agency CNS reported that three persons were arrested on September 13 arrested from Kulgam area during separate raids. The arrestees include Ghulam Nabi Alai of Maloon, Shopian, and Mushtaq Ahmed Shah and Aijaz Ahmed Sheikh son of Ghulam Hassan. 

· SHOPIAN YOUTH MISSING

Srinagar, September 14: Many students of Shopian studying in the Shri Pratap College in Srinagar have been missing from the past few days, Local news agency KNS said Dawood Ahmad Sofi son of Abdul Razak, Sadat Hussain son of Muhammad Yousuf and Shakeel Ahmad Dar son of Fayaz Ahmad Dar, all residents of Shopian did not return home after they went to S.P college on September 5. Their parents searched for them at all possible place, however, their whereabouts could not be known. Police has registered a case and started investigation. KNS said more than 100 persons; most of them girls have disappeared from the Shopian during past several years. 

· GOVT GUNMAN BOOKED UNDER PSA

Handwara, Sept 21: A government gunmen Nazir Ahmed Khatana was arrested by police from Moonbal Village in Kupwara. Booked under Public Safety Act (PSA), he was accused of several murders.

However, one of his "victimized" family alleged that police was trying to hush up the case and get Khatana exonerated. Khatana, who worked for an army camp had last year on December 4 taken a laborer Abdul Rashid Shabengi son of Sayed Ali for work at Army camp at Langate. 

Since then Rashid's whereabouts are not known. 

On FIR being filed by his family, police arrested Khatana, however he managed to flee from the police station and took shelter at an army camp. 

Rashid's family alleges that Khatana has killed him. The family has demanded the body of Rashid and action against the accused. 

On the arrest of Khatana the villagers are feeling respite as they complain that the accused used to harass them. Commenting over his arrest, SP Handwara Nitish Kumar told local media that Khatana was a dreaded criminal. " He was a double cross and a threat to peace and nation. He has been booked under PSA," Nitish added.

· ARMY STARTS PROBE IN LOLAB KILLING; SUMMONS FAMILIES OF KILLED FOR IDENTIFICATION

Jammu, Sept 23: Army has started a high level enquiry in the killing of four Hindu porters of Jammu. The porters were allegedly killed by 18RR in a fake encounter in Lolab, Kupwara. According to the reports the army has summoned the families of the deceased laborers to Kupwara and asked them to identify the bodies. The family members are expected to leave for Kupwara on Saturday with some army officials. The matter came into light on August 28 when the family members of the killed porters received a letter from an unidentified source exposing the fake encounter in which these porters were killed in Lolab. 

· TROOPER FIRES ON DSP

Srinagar: Panic gripped Indian Reserve Police (IRPJ camp in Zachaldara, Kupwara on Thursday when a trooper opened fire on his officer. The officer however had a miraculous escape, while his colleagues detained the accused. According to local news agency KNS, Jasbeer Singh belt No.15 fired several rounds on Deputy Superintendent of Police, J S Katoch after they had an altercation over some issue. The DSP however escaped unhurt and the soldier was arrested by his colleagues and handed over to the police station Handwara, the KNS added. 

· SOLDIER SHOOTS MAJOR, SELF IN HANDWARA 

Srinagar: A trooper shot dead a Major before committing suicide inside a security camp at Baghatpora in Handwara on September 2. According to local media agency, Havildar Kamal Kumar Giri of 21 Rashtriya Rifles opened fire from his service rifle on Major D C Chohan inside the camp killing him on the spot. After killing his officer, Giri committed suicide using the same weapon before his other colleagues could react and disarm him, KNS added. The motive behind the trooper taking such an extreme step was not known immediately, the news agency said. Police has registered a case. 

· KUPWARA MAN TORTURED

Srinagar: Abdul Rashid Lone of Kakroosa Kupwara was set free by troops in a moribund condition after a weeklong detention. Local news agency CNS said Lone was taken into custody by troops of 47 RR and later set free after torturing him. Lone who bore visible marks of torture and a bullet wound in his leg has been hospitalized. 

· TORTURE LEAVES DODA YOUTH WITH AMPUTATED LEG

Doda, Sept 27: Residents of a remote hamlet of Doda district have accused the troops of 26 Rashtriya Rifles of torturing a youth due to which his left leg was amputated at the district hospital after an hour-long surgery. On September 25 morning, people said troops cordoned off Sunarthawa village and asked two youth Farooq Ahmed Butt, son of late Nizam-ud-Din Butt and Abdul Majid to accompany them. However the women of the village succeeded in "rescuing" Majid. The villagers alleged that Farooq was beaten up with gun buts in front of them and later on fired a volley of bullets on his left leg. Later, the RR personnel left the village leaving Farooq in a pool of blood, the villagers alleged. The villagers shifted Farooq to district hospital Doda where a team of doctors amputated his right leg after an hour-long surgery. It is pertinent to mention that two years ago, some unidentified gunmen abducted Farooq's younger brother Khursheed Ahmed and his whereabouts remain a mystery. Villagers however allege that the troops killed him in custody. 

· CM PROVIDES BREAK UP OF COMPLAINTS RECEIVED AND CLAIMS PUNISHMENT
SRINAGAR, Sep 27: The Chief Minister, Mufti Mohammad Syed while replying to the question of the opposition in the Legislative Assembly provided details of the actions taken against police and security forces for violation of human rights. He gave a break up of complaints and subsequent punishments for police, Border Security forces (BSF) and Army. 

" A total of 1385 complaints against army were received since 1990 to March 2004 among them 1311 were false, 32 were substantiated while another 42 are under investigation". He added that 131 personnel of various ranks were punished among them. "Two were awarded life imprisonment, 59 rigorous imprisonment. 11 dismissed from service with one-year imprisonment, four were dismissed from service and 55 were given other punishments. 

About the BSF, he said that 206 complaints were received against them since 1990 to April 15, 2004 among which 162 turned out to be false, 41 proved right, while as three others could not be proved. He added that 68 BSF personnel (which include a DIG, a commandant, a deputy commandant and an assistant commandant) were given punishments, which include dismissal from service and rigorous imprisonment up to 10 years in civil jail. 

About the police, he said that 17 police cops, including an SP and Deputy SP, have been given punishments. The chief minister further said that when the coalition government took over in 2002, "there were 1197 persons under detention where as this number has now reduced to 376". He said that the complaints about human rights violations have also come down from 142 in 2002 to 25 in 2003, 16 in 2004 and six in the current year. 

· STUDENT USED AS SHIELD BY MILITANTS

JAMMU, Sept 27: A student allegedly used as human shield by militants got killed in an encounter between militants and troops in Kishtwar town of Doda district. 

According to official reports troops of Rashtriya Rifles and Special Operations Group (SOG) launched a search operation at Pathana Teer in Mendhar tehsil of Poonch district early September 27 morning after developing information that a Lashker-e-taiba 'commander' was camping in the area. The local police developed the information. 

A contact with the Lashkar commander and his associates was established around 12 noon. Finding themselves trapped, the militants kidnapped an 11th class student Javed Iqbal son of Suleman R/o Salwa, Mendhar and used him as a shield to escape. 

· YOUTH HOSPITALIZED, WAS BEATEN BY SOG

Kishtwar, Sept 28: A youth identified as Zahoor-ud-Din was admitted to sub district hospital Kistwar in critical condition after being allegedly beaten by the personnel of special operation group of police. 

Source said that four SOG men arrested Zahoor-ul-Hassan from his house and tortured him at their camp. He was later thrown near his house. 

 The locals have strongly condemned the SOG and asked the DDC Doda to order an inquiry into the matter. 

KILLINGS IN THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2005

	Date
	Soldiers
	Militants
	Civilians
	Others

	Sept 1
	1
	1
	-
	-

	Sept 2
	-
	9
	-
	-

	Sept 3
	2
	2
	-
	-

	 Sept 4
	1
	2
	3
	-

	Sept 5
	1
	1
	1
	1 PDP activist

	Sept 6
	2
	3
	2
	-

	Sept 7
	-
	2
	2
	1 Renegade 

	Sept 8
	-
	1
	-
	-

	Sept9
	1
	2
	5
	-

	Sept 10
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Sept 11
	5
	-
	6
	-

	Sept 12
	1
	2
	2
	-

	Sept 13
	-
	2
	1
	-

	Sept 14
	-
	3
	-
	-

	Sept 15
	-
	3
	1
	-

	Sept 16
	1
	5
	5
	-

	Sept 17
	-
	4
	1
	-

	Sept 18
	-
	4
	2
	-

	Sept 19
	-
	3
	-
	-

	Sept 20
	-
	-
	3
	-

	Sept 21
	-
	3
	3
	-

	Sept 22
	-
	4
	-
	-

	Sept 23
	2
	2
	-
	-

	Sept 24
	1
	-
	1
	-

	Sept25
	-
	3
	-
	-

	Sept 26
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Sept 27
	-
	3
	-
	-

	Sept 28
	-
	4
	-
	-

	Sept 29
	-
	-
	4
	-

	Sept 30
	-
	4
	4
	-

	Total 
	18
	74
	46
	2


	Date
	Custodial & Extra Judicial Killings 
	Women
	Children
	Alleged Disappearances 

	Sept 6
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Sept 7
	-
	-
	1
	-

	Sept 11
	-
	-
	5
	-

	Sept 15
	1 CK – 1 EJK
	-
	-
	-

	Sept 16
	-
	1
	-
	-

	Sept 24
	1 EJK
	-
	-
	-

	Sept 30
	2 CK
	-
	-
	-

	Total 
	5
	3
	6
	0


	DATE
	 WOMEN AND CHILDREN KILLED

	Sep 6
	Unidentified persons abducted and killed Shaheena Akhter w/o Late Muhammad Ramzan of Tanter Gandoh Doda on Sep 4 night. Police according to communiqué recovered her bullet-riddled body. The sources further added the women had been raped before killing. 



	Sep 6
	Parveen Kousar, wife of Showkat Hussain of Sangiot BG Harni Poonch was killed by unidentified persons by slitting her throat on Sep 4 night. Police has registered a case. 



	Sep 7
	A girl identified as Tabassm Bano of Bomai Sopore was killed when unidentified person lobbed a grenade in General Bus Stand, Sopore.



	Sep 11
	Five minors were killed while as three women injured when unidentified gunmen over night attacked the houses of two special police officers (SPOs) in the remote village of Dhamari in Udhampur district. The minors were identified as Razia Bano (14) daughter of Ghulam Nabi, Showket Ali (13) son of Ghulam Nabi, Mumtaz Ahmed (15) son of Bashir, Muhammad Usmaan (4) son of Rafiq and Umar Bilal (1) son of M. Rafiq all hailing from Thoru and Basan Villages.

The injured shifted to the Government Medical College (GMC) were identified as Begam Jan wife of Muhammad Rafiq, Mishra wife of Barkat Ali and Razia daughter of Muhammad Jamil. 



	Sep 16
	Unidentified gunmen abducted and later shot dead Parveena, wife of an active militant Muhammad Ishaq Cheche at Argam Bandipora on Thursday.




Chronology of incidents September 2005

	Sept 1
	1 militant and 1 BSF constables were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.

	Sept 2
	9 LeT militants were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.

	Sept 3
	2 LeT militants and 2 army men including 1 major were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.

	Sept 4
	2 militants, 3 civilians and 1 SPO were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley

	Sept 5
	1 militant, 1 SPO, 1 civilian and 1 P DP activist were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley

	Sept 6
	2 SPOs and 3 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.

	Sept 7
	2 militants, 1 government gun man and 2 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley

	Sept 8
	1 militant was killed in different violence related incidents in the valley

	Sept 9
	2 militants, 1 policeman and 5 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley

	Sept 10
	

	Sept 11
	6 civilians including 5 minors, and 5 RR were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.

	Sept 12
	2 militants, 2 civilians and 1 BSF were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.

	Sept13
	2 HUJI militants and civilian were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley

	Sept 14
	3 militants were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley

	Sept 15
	3 Albadr militants and 1 civilian were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley

	Sept 16
	5 civilian, 5 HuJI militants and 1 SPO were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.

	Sept 17
	4 militants, 1 student Azad Ali (12 years) were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley

	Sept 18
	4 HM militants and 2 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.

	Sept 19
	3 HM militants were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.

	Sept 20
	3 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley

	Sept 21
	2 HM militants, 1 LeT militant, 2 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley. Police recovered the dead body of Mohd Abdullah Dar (22) S/o: Gh. Qadir, R/o: Panzgam, Chowkibal, Kupwara.

	Sept 22
	4 militants were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.

	Sept23
	1 SOG, 1 Army soldier and 2 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley

	Sept 24
	1 SPO ( Mehbooba Akhtar, D/o: Ab. Razaq Bhat, R/o: Kulgam) were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley. Police recovered 1 dead body from Islamabad.

	Sept 25
	3 militants were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.

	Sept 26
	2 militants were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.

	Sept 27
	3 militants were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.

	Sept 28
	4 militants were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley

	Sept 29
	2 women (Kathua) (mother (Rano Devi) and daughter-9), 3 militants and 2 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.

	Sept 30
	4 LeT militants and 4 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



INDIA RULES OUT TROOPS WITHDRAWAL





New York: India asserted that there was no question of withdrawing troops from any part of Kashmir, saying it could be done only after studying the ground realities and making an overall assessment of the situation there over a certain period of time. 


Foreign Secretary Shyam Saran told reporters while briefing about the "Summit-level meeting" between Prime Minister Manmohan Singh and Pakistan President Pervez Musharraf that India had conveyed to Pakistan that violence in the valley had not stopped though the Pakistani General had assured New Delhi that he would do everything to carry the peace process forward. 


The Foreign Secretary was asked whether Pakistan had sought any assurance about troop withdrawal from Baramulla and Kupwara in Kashmir. 
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